
INTERVIEHEE : MIClL~EL V. Dr SALLE 

INTERVIEWER: T. H. BAKER 

February 4, 1969 

B: This is the interview with Governor Michael V. DiSalle. Sir, if I 

may, subject to your additions and corrections, just outline very 

briefly your background. You were born in 1908 in Toledo; law degree 

from Georgetown in Washington. In the '30s and '40s you held various 
'I positions in the Ohio legislature and the Toledo city government, 

clima."dng in 1948 w'ith two terms as mayor of Toledo. And in 

the '50's you were here in Washington as Director of Price Stabili-

zation. Tnen i~Oill '59 to '63 governor of Ohio; and since '63 you've 

bee~ in private law practice, first in Columbus and since 1966 in 

D: There are a fe:. :::)rrect~ons. I was born in Ne,.] York City instead 

of Toledo. A""!·':' I .... as elected mayor of Toledo in 1948 and served 

one term, was reelected for a second term, and resigned in the middle 

of IT] second ~erT.l at the request of Presi dent Truman. I came dow·n 

to l.Jashingto:J. -::.:> serve as Director of Price Stabilization. Ny term 

for governor ra~ fro~ 1959 to 1963. 

B: When did yot.! first meet Mr. Johnson? 

D: It was during ny tenure as Director of the Office of Price Stabilization. 

I'd heard of Lyndon Johnson over the years. Of particular interest 

were his tT";O caITl.paigns for the Senate Hhich brought him a great deal 

of pub licity. I knew of him as 1"'YA administrator, but never got to 

meet him until he became Majority Whip. 

B: Is it fair to say that he ,·;as knotm arnong Democratic party "\JOrkers 
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before he became a leader in the Senate? 

D: I don't think so. I don't think he was knmm. He was known in 

Washington, but I don't think he was knm·m among Democrats across 

the country. 

 B: For example, yourself, being a party leader in Ohio, you just heard 

generally that there is such a person as Lyndon Johnson? 

D: Yes, I knmv of him,. but didn't knmv much about him. But then,. as 

Director of the Office of Price Stabilization, I had occasion to 

meet with him in the White House and in connection with our legis-

lative programs. And I found that he already was the leader in fact. 

Although Senator McFarland was the Majority Leader, it was Senator 

Johnson that was the strong IPan in that combination. l'hat was very 

obvious. 

B: You mean if you wanted legislation passed, you maybe paid a courtesy 

call on Senator McFarland, but went to Lyndon Johnson? 

D: I think that it WeS very evident that he was the mover in that duo. 

But, of course, we were controllers at the time. I think that 

Senator Johnson at that time was the Senator from Texas and he was 

deeply interested in the Texas interests--cattle, oil, things of that 

kind, cotton. Since we had the control of all three, there were points 

where we might have separated company. 

B: Did that actually occur, sir? Did you and he have ever debate the 

merits-- ? 

D: Oh, \o}e never had any debate, but we noticed that he was much more 

effective on other pieces of legislation than the legislation that 

might affect those special interests. 

B: Did you look upon that as something that a Senator from a cattle, oil, 
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and gas state would have to do? 

D: We learned to understand this. It wasn't something that I personally 

felt I would want to do if I was a Senator. But Senators who did 

have a better record of being elected and reelected than I did. 

B: In this kind of work, 't"as there ever anything like Mr. Johnson having 

to, ~ay, publicly oppose controls in those areas for the benefit 

of his constituents but still, more privately, giving assistance 

to the Administrative program? 

D: I don't believe so~' I don't think he publicly opposed. I think his 

opposition was much more effective--

B: It really worked--

D: Within the legislative halls. Actually, although he disagreed, I 

never Ime~v of him to publicly disagree. It ,.;ras more a. foot-dragging 

o:Jeration. _~_::i I knew that even when we met with the President, it 

was quite ev~d2~t where he stood. 

B: Did this actt.ally affect the state of-the control program? 

D: I think it did. At that time we had Sam Rayburn as Speaker. Sam 

wasn't very :::-..:ch in sympathy with controls on cattle. It might have 

been, too, t::2.t I was not smart enough or experienced enough to have 

gone in and cleared some o~ these regulations ,,;pith them before 

announcing th2~. But the chances are if I had tried to clear them, 

we'd· have had real problems. 

B: You might net have gotten any farther than--? 

D: That's rig~t. 

B: Did you see 2::ything of the relationship betHeen then Senator Johnson 

and President Truman? How did they get along? 

D: Actually, not as ,.,e 11 as later day historians seem to think. I thin~( 
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there was real pull. I don't think that Sam Rayburn and Lyndon· 

Johnson at that time--who worked pretty much as a team--were in total 

syrapathy with Truman's programs. I think this accounted for a lot 

of the problems that Truman had with his programs on the Ili11. 

B: Could you tell if there were any particular parts of President Truman's 

Fair Deal program that Mr. Rayburn and Mr. Johnson particularly 

disliked? 

D: I wasn't that close to the whole program because at that time I 

was working full-time on the price side. We had in at least part of 

that period, people like Charlie Wilson--from General Electric, not 

General Motors--and Lucius Clay in the Office of Defense Mobilization. 

There was a great deal of conflict there with what we thought ought 

to be controls and vaat they thought ought to be controls. I would 

t~cin..~ that the 2.egislative leadership, with people like ,Johnson and 

Rayburn, would be vore in tune wi th their idea of what controls ought 

to be. 

B: Did you have c..::.y contact with Nr. Johnson in these years in Democratic 

party matters? 

D: No, I didn't. I don't really think that there was a great deal of 

activity on Xr. Johnson's part in Democratic party matters. He 'vas 

a Senator rre>::l Texas. He was interested in the legislative process. 

He .,Tas excellent in being able to secure the things he really ,.anted, 

and to kee? =roD happening the things he didn't want. 

E: By the late !50's there was apparently som~ differences of opinion 

bet\-i2eL1. the Der::oc.r8.tic National Committee, particularly its advisory 

council, and Hr. Johnson and Nr. Rayburn. 

D: Yes, there was, and I think that possibly they ~vere right--Rayburn 
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and Johnson were right. TIley were the leaders of the Democratic 

minority--and majority. Certainly I don't think they should have been 

bound by a policy that was completely partisan in nature. 

B: Is it possible that in that antagonism there 1.]ere personalities 

too--that Mr. Johnson and Paul Butler just didn't get along? 

D: I'm sure that Johnson and Paul Butler never got along very well. 

Rayburn and Paul Butler seemed to get along better. But I think 

that Johnson had a certain arrogance. He kept himself to the Senate 

pretty well and to 'legislation where he always looked to Rayburn 

for a partnership. 

Paul Butler of course had a different function. And, of course, 

I knmv sorr.e.thL'"lg about it because in 1954 I ,,,as a candidate for national 

chairman Hi.th }ir.-Truman's implied, and very often his implicit, 

s·-=?port. Sa~. R",yburn came into Ne,.] Orleans, where the national 

c~mmittee roeeti~g was held, and wanted to withhold any decision. But 

when this we.';; ~ossible he supported Paul Butler who was then elected 

with the SUp?0rt of Rayburn and Stevenson. 

B: Was Hr. Johns:m involved in that too? 

D: I think only as it was related to Sam Rayburn's appearance there. 

You knmv, it ~ .... as later that Rayburn and Truman, and Johnson and Truman 

were to bec::;::!.: close. But in those days there was very little 

consultation between them. 

B: Is it in those. days that in party matters like that Johnson just 

deferred to ?-ayburn? 

D: I think so oecause he had his m-m job to do, and he \vorked full time 

at it. 

B: When did you as an active Democratic leader first begin to see signs 
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of ambitions beyond the Senate in Br. Johnson? 

D: I think imI:lediate ly. 

B: As soon as you knev him? 

D: He l-laS chairman of the Senate Preparedness Connnittee in 1951--in 

the early days of the price job. His connnittee was one that took 

interest in the control program as part of that. I never had any 

question in my mind that he would never be content just to be a 

Senator from Texas. 
,~ 

B: lfhich meant that he must have been looking for the Presidency. 

D: Yes. 

B: Do you think then in 1956, when he was a favorite son nominee of the 

Democratic convention, that he might have had in mind being something 

more than just a favorite son? 

D: I don I t think he ,?as serious at the time. I think he realized that 

Stevenson ~vas a cinch. But I think he ,-las looking ahead to 1960. 

B: That brings us up to the 1960 preconvention campaign. You were 

governor of Ohio at the time. Did Mr. Johnson make a real attempt, 

so far as you could tell to get the nomination, and hmo1 did he go 

about it? 

D: I think that he was interested. I think his strategy was wrong, 

tactics were wrong. I think that he misconstrued the power he had 

in \.J'ashington with pmver in the Democratic party. I think he relied 

greatly on the pm,,'er that his colleagues in the Senate might have 

within their own states. At the time the state organizations were 

actually influenced by the governors of those states rather than the 

Senators. 

Then I think possibly the strategy Has tried in some sort of 
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attempt to stop Jack Kennedy, who was the early front runner. I 

remember getting calls from people in Washington saying that if I 

wanted to oppose Jack Kennedy in the Ohio primary that I would not 

have to be concerned about funds. These were people I'd knmvn for some 

time and people that I felt were close to Johnson~ although there 

was nothing that they said that would indicate that they \'!ere speaking 

for Johnson--on his behalf~ or even related directly or indirectly. 

For example. I had one visitor ~ Hubert Humphrey with Jim Rm\le. 

This was after I had-announced for Kennedy. Jim Rowe and Humphrey 

both felt that they were going to beat Kennedy in lvisconsin and in 

West Virginia and then they'd be back to see me. I told them that 

that would be fine, I'd love to see them, but I wished that they 

wouldn't wait that long because I didn't think that they'd ever 

co-;::e back if they were going to wait for those t,vo eventualities. 

But the next time I sa\-1 Jim Rowe \\las at the convention \vhen he 

was floor managing Johnson's campaign. I had no reason to feel that 

Jim r~owe tvas--or that Humphrey was a stalking horse for Johnson in this 

campaign. But the presence of Jim Rowe that I had known as a long 

time Johnson £~iend certainly gave me that feeling. Of course I 

didn't care. I thought Jim Rowe certainly \vas entitled to support 

his friend Lyndon Johnson if he wanted to. 

B: If this isn't too impertinent a question, bui: at that time ,vhat \.,a3 

the reason for your decision to opt for Kennedy rather than Johnson 

or anyone else? 

D: It's contained better in a memorandum I \vrote in February of 1960. 

A friend of mine in Cincinnati was going to have to make a speech 

before a service club on conventions, and he \vanted son:e anecdotes. 
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So I wrote some anecdotes for him. I said, "I might as well tell 

you what's going to happen at the convention. On the first ballot, 

we're going to be faced with a choice between Jack Kennedy and Lyndon 

Johnson. And at that time people like Dave Lawrence, DiSapio, Dick 

Daley, Williams, Pat Brown, are all going to have to make the decision 

I've already made. In a Northern state they just would have no reason 

to go for Johnson. They'd just have to go for Jack Kennedy." At 

that time Johnson did not have the reputation of being liberal. 

He was associated with conservative causes and conservative people. 

The leaders in the North would have to go for a liberal candidate. 

I thought it was just that obvious. 

. Of course, one other reason is I kne"1 Jack Kennedy better. One 

of the problems with Lyndon Johnson at that time as far as the 

national Democratic party was concerned yJas that he 'Has not knmm in 

the North. He was known, but not on a personal basis. If y]e had 

a fund-raising dinner or we had our state convention, if we'd try 

to get Lyndon Johnson, it \vas impossible. Jack Kennedy \vas available, 

and he'd come into the state and he made friends. I opposed him 

for the Vice Presidential nomination in 1956. In fact, I put Estes 

Kefauver's name in nomination. But in spite of that-- I 'Has a candidate 

for governor that year--Kennedy kept coming in. And he came in 

'58 during my campaign. He came in for the state convention, and 

he was always there. So we got to know him, and we liked him. 

B = And you would ask Mr. Johnson for this kind of help and--

D: He just \-las too busy in Washington. I may be wrong on this, but if 

I am, I'm not too far wrong. I don I t recall Lyndon Johnson making 

an appearance at a political affair in Ohio during the '50s, up 
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until possibly late '59 or something at that timC!--but not before that. 

B: You know, it's curious for a man whom everyone describes as being a 

consummate politician to have what I guess amounts to a strategic 

or tactical shortsightedness as to how national conventions work. 

D: I don't think this is unusual. I think people who are 't-lashington-oriented 

misjudge the rest of the country. They misjudge their prominence 

in l~ashington for prominence in Cleveland or Columbus. Then they find 

out that they're not knmm in Cleveland or Columbus or Kalamazoo or 

Lansing or Chicago. 'I 

B: Kennedy was shrewd enough to figure this out? 

D: He had been across the country many, many times. 

B' Did this TIle2ora:dum you wrote early in 1960 go on to include ~.j'hat 

might happen to the Vice Presidential position? 

D: No, it did not. I went on to say that Humphrey would be knocked 

out by double ca::ee.ts in Hisconsin and West Virginia; that Symington 

would be w2it~~~ for a deadlock that wouldn't occur and would be left 

at the post. E~t in connection with this Vice Presidency, if I 

was going to select a candidate for Vice President, it ~ouldn't have 

been Lyndo~ ~::~nson for the same reasons. There are other people 

that I kne~ ~etter like Symington or Humphrey or other people like 

that. But ~2an Jack Kennedy asked a group of the people that 

supported hi::: ,,,hat they thought about Lyndon Johnson, I 'Has quick 

to tell his tjat he had traveled the country. He kne,,, the country. 

He was the I:"".:2n who would have to work ~"ith ·the Vice PreSident, and 

certainly w~~ever he selected we would support. As soon as he said 

LYl'.don John3;)n was his choice, I brought the message back to the Ohio 

caucus and they unanimously supported Johnson. 
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B: This group that you say Mr. Kennedy asked for advice--do you recall 

who else was included in that? 

D: There were two groups. Abe Ribicoff and I sat through both meetings. 

The first mee ting was held with Northern leaders, and I think in 

that group were Soapy Williams, Dave Lawrence, Carmine DiSapio, 

Dick Daley, Pat Brmm, possibly Mike Pendergast from New York, myself, 

Ribicoff, John Bailey. Of that group the only person who spoke out 

in opposition to Johnson was Williams because of his strong labor 

organization he had in Detriot and the fact that Johnson had opposed 

civil rights and liberal legislation generally. At least this is 

what they thought. 

B: When was this? Was this that night after--? 

D: It was the morning following the nomination. Then, later, right 

~f:er this 22e=i2g broke up, came Southern leaders like Terry 

Sanford, Luther ~ociges, Senator Ed Brown from South Carolina, 

Beuford Ellin~tQ~--a number of the people from the South, governors 

and state leaders. And, of course, they were unanimous in support 

of Johnson. 

B: At the meet~~g of the Northern leaders, did you get the impression 

that Kennedy ~ad already decided, that he was just asking for ratifi-

cation or possible veto? 

D: I think so. I think that possibly he was surprised that Johnson was 

interested. 

B: Hy next question "as 'olhether or not there ,,,as any hint at that time that 

}lr. Kennedy or the Kennedy staff felt obligated to offer the post 

to Jolmso::l, and Iilaybe ,.ere pretty sure he ,·]ould decline it. 

D: I can tell you an incident totally unrelated. At the Governors 
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Conference in Glacier Park, Montana, in June or July of 1960, I 

thought then that Kennedy ,vas a first ballot winner. I was talking 

to Abe Ribicoff and John Bailey and talking about possible candidates 

for the Vice Presidency. Ribicoff said, "Well, he'll have to offer 

it to Lyndon Johnson." 

And I said, "Well, don't offer it to him if you don't want him 

to take it, because I fee 1 that he would accept it." 

Bailey said, "Well, why should he? He's the most powerful man 

in the United States  today." 

And I said, "If we have a Democratic President, the Majority 

Leader won't be the most powerful man in the United States. And 

besides, I think that Mrs. Johnson would like to see him step out 

of the more strenuous job of Majority Leader. The Vice Presidency 

would be a good place to get a national platform. If he has any 

a..8.bitions, this would be a good spot for him." 

Well, I felt this, because at the time that Lyndon Johnson 

announced his candidacy for the Presidency, he was asked whether 

he would accept the Vice Presidency. The only announced candidate 

who said, "I will serve in whatever capacity I can best serve my 

nation." He didn't back away from the Vice Presidency. And I too 

at that time thought he was too shrewd a politician, too knowledgeable 

a politician, not to know that he was announcing too late for the 

Presidency--that the ball game was over. Now he may not have. 

Oscar Chapillan, 'Hho was in my office, was the chairman of the 

Johnson for President Citizens committee, the independent committee. 

And he had told Lyndon Johnson that he thought he was announcing 

too late. He said, "I'll be for you. I'll do \"hatever I can, but I 
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think it's impossible at this time to catch up." So other people 

fe It the same \~ay. It may be that Johnson, and candidates--and I'm 

not excluding myself Hhen I'm a candidate--are totally blind. They're 

so emotionally involved with ,~hat they're doing that they can't see 

the picture like a more objective person might be able to see it. 

B: On that day that Johnson \·7as offered the Vice Presidential position, 

there seems to have been a good deal of confusion--maybe just simple 

organizational confusion. Were you active that day in maybe trying 

to talk to Mr. Johnson? ., 

D: No, I ~las not. I just felt that this Has a selection that the 

Presidential nominee \.]ould make. I only ran into one little incident. 

As I was leaving the Biltmore after the decision had been announced 

--it hadn't been announced publicly, at least I knew what the 

decision Ha3--1 ran into Art Goldberg and Walter Reuther. Both of 

tr-~~::1 ~7ere furious. They had heard that this Has in the wind. They 

fe It it would destroy the ticket, that labor would back al.07ay. They 

talked about a figh~ on the floor to keep the convention from 

accepting Johnso~. 

Later I found out that this seemed to be a reflection of a 

feeling of other liberals, especially in the Michigan delegation. 

They're the only ones that voiced any protest on the floor. But I 

felt that it was a Presidential selection, and I had no objection 

to Lyndon Johnson. I felt that his experience in the Senate would 

be helpful to the President. I felt that h~ Has a man of stature, 

and he ,vould bring balance to the ticket. So I had no prob lem \.]ith 

it. 

B: Did you do anything to help calm down Governor Williarns' Michigan 
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delegation? 

D: People who were objecting, yes. Not specifically those, but others 

who objected. In fact we were the first delegation to report back 

to President Kennedy that the Ohio delegation was unanimous for 

Johnson. 

Later, during the campaign, Johnson came into Columbus at the 

time that top picture there was taken, and he told me that--these 

are his words--that Jack Kennedy had told him about my call and that 

this helped Johnson make up his mind to stand for the Vice Presidency 

even though there might be a fight. 

B: The fact that at least one major Northern delegation had--

D: That's right. 

B: Incidentally, was there any difficulty in getting unanimous consent 

f:rom your deleSEtion? 

D: r-;0, there ,.;a;:- ~.:.::me at all. There was some disappointment. Symington 

had a lot of f::-iends in the delegation, but there was no problem 

with it. 

B: Is it fair to say that. still at that time to, say, members of your 

delegation Johnson was still not really known but l~as just looked 

upon as a collection of labels? 

D: That's right:. He was not known. I don I t know if there loJ'ere ten 

people in o~r delegation who had ever met Lyndon Johnson. And most 

of those \oJ'2:re people who w'ere either members of the Congress or had 

been filem!Je:-s of the Congress--or were members of the Senate. Steve 

Young was in the Senate at that time and was very, very strong 

for Jo~mson. In fact, He had a little trouble keeping him from voting 

for Johnson on the first ballot. But "le ,·lere COrnr.litted and he stayed 
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wi th his commitment. 

n: Hm. do you keep a man from breaking from the de legation? 

D: He had sixty-four delegates. He cast sixty-four votes for Jack 

Kennedy. It's the only large state that cast a unanimous vote. l~ere 

were other states that cast more votes, but we cast the only unanimous 

vote. And I think largely because at the time I made my announcement 

for Kennedy, I said that I would be a candidate for favorite son, but 

anyone ,,,ho voted for me l"ould be in effect voting for Jack Kennedy. And 

this was a commitment that went before the voters, and I think that 
"f 

politicans, in spite of ,.]hat some people might think, are more apt 

to keep these kind of conrrnitments than other people are. 

B: During the campaign itself, didNr. Johnson campaign in Ohio? 

D: Yes, he did. Not as much as we ,wuld liked to have had him, and not 

as much as we I d liked to have had him in some parts of the state. t.J'e 

f.; It he would have been a lot more effective for us in "the southern 

part of the state, but there was something in this campaign which 

indicated that he would prefer just going into the large cities. 

He didn't need hiD. in the large cities, but we needed him in those 

areas of the state where the religious issue was the most difficult. 

I thought he handled it head-on during the campaign and it was very, 

very effective. 

B: Did he have to rr~et it squarely on Ohio? 

D: Sure. This ,,,as the biggest problem we had. 

B: I've heard it said that the religious issue--the issue of John Kennedy's 

Catholicism--might have been stronger in the Hid,vest than it ,vas in 

the South. 

D: I think there was no question about it. 1'11 tell you--maybe 
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it isn't--I don't think it's right to say that. You take a state like 

Georgia where at that time we had an 85 per cent Democratic vote. If 

we lost 20 per cent, this wouldn't be bad. But a state like Ohio 

where 5 per cent can change the election--if you lose 5, you're 

in real trouble. 

B: But you feel that it was that important in Ohio? 

.D: There's just no question. 

B: For example, you're a Roman Catholic yourself, and you were governor 

of the state. 

D: There's a Methodist minister in Lancaster, Ohio, who preached six 

sermons in a row--every Sunday for six weeks--against the election 

of Jack Kennedy. And in one of the speeches he said, ItLittle did ,ole 

know 't>7hen ,·]e elected Hike DiSalle governor that "b:.w years later 

he would be engaged in a Catholic conspiracy to elect a Catholic 

President. It 

B: Was that kind of thing widespread? 

D: Yes it was. I had more hate mail during that campaign. I think it 

was one of the real damaging things that happened to me politically 

in Ohio. 

B: Hate mail directed to you? 

D: Sure, because of that. 

B: Then I suppose your evaluation would be that's why Ohio ,·]ent Republican 

in that election. 

D: There's just no question. I can shmv you specific instances--counties, 

precincts. Precincts in Summit County--that's the county in which 

1L1<ron is the major ci ty--that had gone for Stevenson against Eisenho~'7er 

't>7ent for Nixon against Kennedy. One of the chairmen in the Southern 
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part of the state said the Nason-Dixon Line had moved north about 

forty miles. 

E: Southern Ohio is Southern in that sense, isn't it? 

D: You see, Ohio doesn't have the large percentage of migration that states 

like Pennsylvania and New York, Illinois, and California might have 

--Massachusetts and the East Coast generally. The percentage of 

Catholics in the state is not nearly as large as it is in those 

other states. It has been, I suppose, as a large state the strongest 

Protestant state north of the Mason-Dixon Line. And we don't have 
,~ 

anyone large city that dominates the state. Columbus is almost the 

capital of the Protestant Church. '~e have so many denominations. 

B: Did you explain all of this to Mr. Johnson or to whomever was mcl~ing 

the campaign plans? 

D: I talked to SeQator Johnson at the time he was in Ohio· and told him 

this problem. And he recognized it. He made a speech from the steps 

of the Capitol in which he really hit at it. Then we took him down 

to Chillicothe in Ross County, 'vhich is a small county, a small 

community--first capital of Ohio--a~d he hit it again. I think if we 

could have had more of him, it might have made the difference between 

carrying or losing Ohio. 

B: After the election during Mr. Kennedy's PreSidency, did you have any 

further contacts with Mr. Johnson as Vice President? 

D: I was trying to think. One. I'd see him on different occasions, 

exchanged greetings. But I was in New York for a Georgetown University 

alumni dinner. The John Carroll Award was being given. This was 

in October of '63. The Vice President was to get an award that 

evening, the John Carroll Award, presented to the outstanding alumni 

LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh



17 

members. So I thought I ~vas kidding him, and I said, "I got that 

a,vard seven or eight years ago. You must have been a slow learner." 

And he said, "I was only in school a short time there. II I 

was kidding, and he took it seriously. About a month afterwards, he 

was President.' 

B: Some people say that he really doesn't have much of a sense of humor. 

D: I don't think he has when it comes to him, although he's one of the 

most delightful story tellers, in that earthy way, that I've ever 

heard tell a story--and great at mimlcry. 

B: During this time, were there any rumors or talk going around in 

Derr.ocratic political circles that perhaps Hr. Johnson might not be 

on the Kennedy ticket in 19641 

D: There 'Has a lot of talk, but I never felt that this would be the case. 

And I never ::",2.:-(; Jack Kennedy say anything about it. I had talked 

tc him about i~ ~~ occasion. 

B: l'!as it also £3,:.'.:::-2.:;,- obvious to political observers that there 'Has some 

antagonism beCw22::l }ir. Johnson and the Kennedy staff? 

D: I think that wa3 talked about. And you could tell from the attitude 

of some of tbe Ke:-c.edy people that Johnson didn't fit their mold. 

B: Was it general or just a few individuals around? 

D: I think it was ffiore or less general. 

B: Did Presiden: ~eJ:ledy himself share it? 

D: He didn' to He see::ned to enjoy Johnson. You knmv, there's ahmys this 

thing betwee:l a President and Vice President, or governor and 

lieutenant governor--that the lieutenant governor's moving up and the 

governor is afraid he might. And the President and Vice President 

share this feeling. The Vice President isn't nearly as close to the 
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President as a Cabinet officer might be, or his staff people are. 

He sees them all the time. The Vice President has his mm duties. 

He goes off. He's sort of a ceremonial chief of government. It's 

hard for the Pr~sident to get every place and people turn to the Vice 

President. It's almost by nature a relationship that is not close. 

Recently I read some columnist in which he painted out that the 

Nixon-Agnew relationship was much closer and Nixon was trying to break 

Agnew into the Presidency, quite contrary to the Roosevelt-Truman 

relationship. Tru:nan Has Vice President about three months under 

Roosevelt, and Roosevelt ,,,as in this time busy Hith the war, trying 

to wind it up. Row could he take time out to tutor a Vice President 

whose primary interest had been the Senate anyway, and who was 

enjoying presidi.:lg over the Senate, and ,,,ho felt right at home there? 

Ry.; could the "L:.:::= President in that short time pick up the problems 

of the war that ~j been going on this long and in which Roosevelt 

had an intima~2 ~:::':',jledge. He knew \"hat was happening all of the time. 

He was busy with t:he atom bomb at the time. He \\Tas busy with the 

break up in Ger::laZ1Y, the possible end of the ,\Tar in Japan. So in 

three months you hardly would think about trying to take the Vice 

President into your confidence~ 

B: Hr. Johnson as Vice President '·7as already an expert in certainly 

one area, in the legislative field. Do you knmv if President Kennedy 

called upon ttis expertise? 

D: I don't knOT, .. ',.;hether he did or not. I think I remember him complaining 

at one time th2.t he didn't think that Johnson ,,,as doing as r.1uch as he 

might be able to do in trying to get the program through. In fact, 

one of the re2.sons he had given in selecting Lyndon Johnson Has that 
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Johnson would be helpful in the legislative end of the Administration. 

And I do think he had a feeling that Johnson wa:m' t really perfot:"ming 

there. 

B: I was ,"ondering hm-1 well the Vice President, even a former Majority 

Leader, can exercise power in the Senate or in the House? 

D: It's a lot different. 

B: It must be. 

D: But you knm\l, when he 'lias Majority Leader, the members of the Senate 

realized that cornmid:ee assignments, possib ly direction of campaign 

contributions, campaign help of one kind or another, could come from 

the Majority Leader. And as Vice President, they wouldn't have that 

same feeling. 

B: In the period right after the assassination of President Kennedy tV'hen 

N::-. Johnso::J. was taking hold of the reins of government, were you 

contacted by hiB? 

D: No, I was not. I didn't have any contact to speak of with President 

Johnson. I was over at the White House once to a luncheon and a couple 

of times in connection with the President t s Club activities. This 

one photograph which was taken one day in July of 1965, and it was a 

typical day at the White House. This was the day he announced the  

acceleration in Vietnam. And twenty or twenty-five men, I guess,   

were over there waiting on the Presidentfs Club drive. And he 

frightened me half to death that day because he cmne in and he saw 

me sitting there. And incidentally, Senator Fulbright was with him 

'\-7hen he came in. He introduced Fulbright to the people and said to 

Fulbright, "These are the men uho feed the bear." 

B: A reference to your financial abilities. 
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b: Yes. And then he turned to me and he said, ''i-like, you almost had 

another OPA on your hands this morning." This \'las in refcrence--I 

guess they \-lere deciding whether to go much further than they finally 

decided to go •. I think they were considering all-out mobilization. 

B: The implication was that they were considering at least instituting 

price controls? 

D: That's right. 

B: Did you ever hear any more about that? 

D: Never any more. 

B: Did you participate in the 1964 campaign? 

D: Largely in a fu~d-raising capacity, and mostly in Ohio. 

B: Was it fairly easy to raise money in that one? 

D: Yes, for two reasons. One, people thought Lyndon Johnson \-1Quld '-lin; 

an: secondly, :"12~~- ,,;ere afraid that Gold~-later might. So this made 

it very easy. T, ~aybe, raised a hundred and thirty-five to a 

hundred and rOI";:'- thousand, which is unheard of in Ohio. 

B: Is it possible for a working politician to distinguish whether people 

in that election mostly voted for Johnson or mostly voted against 

Goldwater? 

D: I think oile 0:: :::he unfortunate things in that election, I ah-lays 

felt it any,.ay, was that Johnson didn't have a more substantial opponent. 

Because if the election had been closer, I think it might have had more 

influence on hi;:!. in the method of conducting office after that. 

B: You mean you feel that he got an incorrect--~n exaggerated notion 

of--

D: The mandate. 

B: --ho~ far the people were behind him? 
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D= That's right. 

B: It has been said, too, that Mr. Johnson was out to win that election 

by as big a margin as possible. Was this noticeable in--? 

D: There's no que.stion about it. He went at that election like he ~-1as 

running for county sheriff. He was going to IT~ke as many stops as 

humanly possible, and even more. 

B: Did that attitude get offensive, too pushy? 

D: I don't think it did. I think that people feel that candidates 

normally react this·~way. 

B: I meant among the professional politicians. 

D: I think there ,.;ere comments about it. But you know, large expenditures 

for television at the last minute there at the last when everyone 

knew that the ~lection was settled. 

B: S.:;nething DuS:: '":3.ve worked. He carried Ohio by more than--

D: A million votes. And it elected Steve Young. I don't think there tolaS 

any question abo~t it. 

B: Meaning he ca~~ied him with--

D: Sure, Steve ..-...::>;]. by fifteen thousand votes while Johnson ,·ms carrying 

the state 0: a Billion, sixty thousand. And he also elected some 

Congressr.len. 

B: \nlich, I SUp?ose is the kind of thing they reree~bered later on--

D: That isn't true, You just don't know politiCians. If they lose and 

the head of ':ne ticket goes dmm, they blame it on the head of the 

ticket. If ~hey win and the head of the ticket wins by a landslide, 

they have W0:'. on their own. 

S: That's the ~ay it works. 

D: That's right. 

B: One thing that comes up in connection, not "ith the '64 campaign 
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itself, but after 0'64. I've also heard it said that the Democratic 

National Committee in Johnson's Presidency sort of fell on hard tnnes, 

became a not very effective organization. 

D: I don't think there's any question about that. I think that possibly 

Johnson during the campaign developed. t!lC idea that 0 he and his im:nediate 

staff ,.;ron the election, and that the national committee was a drag, 

and that they'd run up large bills, and he was stuck with--I don't 

know--a four million dollar deficit I think he talked about at this 

meeting at the White House shortly after that. And I think the truth 

of the matter is that it wasn't Johnson or his staff or the national 

committee or anybody else except the times. Johnson was going to win. 

lIe had taken office in November 1963 under very tough circumstances. 

The nation ,,]as very sympathetic. He had a good year after that. 

I don't think Goldwater or any Republican could have come close to 

beating him. 

B: Is it possible that still in 1964 that Mr. Johnson didn't really 

understand the organization of national politics? 

D: I don't think he did. I don't think he realized the function of 

the national c::n:rr:l:'ttee. l've always felt that there are t,vo separate 

jobs to be done: one by the office holder and the candidate; one by 

a political committee, or organized state committee, or national 

committee, and that is, they carry the message to get people interested 

in activities, to encourage registration, to encourage participation. 

This a President is too busy ';vi th his own functions to really do. 

He may be a great President, but unless he has a sales organization 

he's going to have trouble selling his programs. 

B: And this is ,,]here the national committee t.]as lacking during the Johnson 
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years? 

D: Sure. They just didn't have the manpower to do it or the money with 

which to function, and I could understand Johnson's point of view. 

He \-Ias interested in getting that debt retired 't·/hich he fe It really 

was a spot on his own record--the fact that he had this obligation. 

B: Did he continue to put pressure on people to get rid of that obligation? 

D: The President's Club kept functioning. But after '64, it became more 

and more difficult. '65 it was a little better than '66. '66 it 

was worse than '65, and it just kept deteriorating because they just 

didn't feel that there was any immediate reason or pressure for doing 

anything. The national committee 'tvas not functioning, and this was 

the only contact these people had with politics--many of them. 

B: Did this create some antagonisms among possible sources of money? 

D: Tb.ere's no question about it. They just felt that they l-lere being 

used, many of then did. 

B: All this leads up to the 168 campaign. Did you get involved in that 

--5.n any aspects of it? 

D: I was a delegate from Ohio, and in the original instance we were 

committed to Johnson. I would have lived with that corrunitment. I 

felt that Johnson was a better President than he had been given 

credit for being. I trusted the fact that he had the best intelligence 

available and that he 'tvasn' t stupid. He certainly ,vas a patriotic 

American. He wasn't going to do anything to damage the country. He 

was going to use his best judgment to do ,·,heit Has best. Hm"ever, 

when he announced that he 'tvas Hithdrm-ling from the race and that he 

was going to stop the bombing, 'tvhich ,vas adopting the position that 

had been taken by most of his critics, I began to have my doubts about 
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whether or not I had been right in following his leadership on this 

matter. Instead of going ~vith Hubert Humphrey, I then began to help 

Bobby Kennedy • 

B: Had you been contacted earlier by anyone representing Bobby Kennedy? 

D: Yes, and I had told them that I was committed to Johnson and was going 

to stay there. 

B: The doubts that the March 31st speech created in you, were these in 

the area of just politics, or more of broader policy? 

D: Broader policy. I knew that nothing could have happened between 

New Hampshire and March 31st that would have made stopping the 

bombing any better on March 31st than it had been before New Hampshire. 

B: You mean mothing had happened in Vietnam? r.!~an  

D: That's right. 

B: Dc: I infer tr:2:'. ::.hat you thought perhaps Johnson was doing this just 

to take the ,.;i;:lC out of Bobby Kennedy's sails? 

D: No. I don't t~~~k Bobby Kennedy's sails, but I think that he began 

to realize fo::: the first time that the country was not supporting him, 

and that he ''';2.3 looking for a way out. I was sympathetic to the fact 

that he witi-.c::aH. 

I tried to do the same thing in Ohio. I ran into problems with 

my program. I ",-as sponsoring more appropriations for higher education, 

better mental health programs, the things that I felt ,Jere necessary 

that I just ::::ould.:1't get through to the <,eople. So I felt that maybe 

I could do a better job by withdrmving from the race. And I had 

thought abo:l~ it and even announced the \vithdrmval, and then changed 

my mind, w~ich was a bad thing to do. I think maybe if I had stayed 

with the ,Tithdrmlal I'd have been much better off. 
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But I was closer to the Kennedys. But in spite of that, I'd 

have stayed with Johnson if he had stayed in the race. I felt no 

obligation to Hubert Humphrey at the time. 1 felt that Hubert had 

sort of been blindly following Johnson, and then I began to notice 

he was trying to pull away, and 1 didn't understand this. He was 

either right before, or he was admitting that it was a convenience 

thing. 

So I supported Bobby until he was killed, and then a month later 

I announced that I w~s going to try to draft Teddy. But after the 

convention I did all I could for Humphrey. I made speeches in 

New Jersey, 11as3cchusetts, in Pennsylvania, Indiana. 

B: How close did the draft movement for Edward Kennedy come to success? 

D: On Tuesday night it was ready to go. Wednesday morning Teddy 

announced that he would not accept the nomination and that killed it. 

If he'd have just not said anything, he'd have been nominated. 

B: Who was in direct contact with him, trying to talk him into accepting? 

D: I don't know that. I was not in contact with him. He called me on 

}londay, and as~ed Qe not to place his name in nomination. I understood 

that he'd say ::'e was not a candidate, and people said, "~\lell, you knmY" 

Hike DiSalle. ~.fuy don't you call and tell him not to put your name 

in nomination if yo~'re not a candidate!" And he wanted to eliminate 

any semblance of contrivance. I was convinced that if he fe It it ~-7as 

a genuine d=a=~, he would have accepted. 

B: You did get the impression then on Monday there that he ~.;rould accept 

a draft? 

D: Yes. 

B: Has there anyone representing Lyndon Johnson in the ~.]Orkings of the 
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convention? 

D: Oh I think so. Charlie Hurphy \.;as, and others. 

B: \.Jhat position were they taking? 

D: Charlie Hurphy\"as the one Hho took the draft of the minori ty plank 

to Johnson. The story \.Je got back was that Johnson exploded and 

threatened to fight it. And this led to a modification. 

B: As I recall~ the modification wasn't that much. 

D: It wasn't that much, no, it really Y7asn't--just enough to leave room 

to fight about. I ~~as asked by a member of Humphrey's staff to nlake 

a speech for the majority plank. But I had been so close to the 

Kennedy thing that I just didn't feel so soon after that anybody would 

ever believe that I wasn't doing anything except trying to grab some 

cheap television time. 

B: ~""2.S there ever anl thought given to Ted Kennedy as the Vice Presidential 

nominee? 

D: Oh, of course. B~t never any thought by Ted to it. 

B: That '-las really the question. Has it ever presented to him? 

D: It \.;ras presented to him. He turned it down several times--and by 

many people. 

B: You then after the convention went ahead and campaigned for Humphrey? 

D: Sure. 

B: Again, among the good politicians during the campaign, this question 

of Johnson 's relatioOl to Humphrey and to the Humphrey campaign \.;as 

one of the tortured ones. Has there ever any thought given to trying 

to bring Johnson into the campaign more openly? 

D: I think that people close to Humphrey in the campaign felt it '·.]Quld 

be a liability. And they deliberately stayed ar.'lay from him, which I 
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think Has a mistake. There \vas no \-lay of disa.ssociating Humphrey 

from Johnson. It then became a question as to '-Jhether he 'vas trying 

to duck and trying to--it gave the appearance of being \vishY-"1ashy. 

I think it hurt him a lot more than if Johnson had been in the campaign. 

Of course, the fact that Johnson did not attend the convention, and 

was advised not to attend, was a pretty good indication of the feeling 

that politicians had about Johnson's standing at that time. 

B: There \vas a rumor going around toward the end of the convention that 

Johnson just might 4show up. 

D: Yes, the rumor was there, and a lot of the Humphrey people were very 

concerned about it. 

B: You mean afraid that he might show up? 

D: Yes. 

B: Incidentally, did you see anything of the disturbances in Chicago? 

D: I didn It. \,]hen I was busy 'tl7ith the Ted Kennedy thing, I was driving 

from hotel to ho::el traveling all around Chicago--never saw anything 

except the front of the Conrad Hilton. I think that 'vas largely 

staged. 

B: You mean by the television people? 

D: No. By the people \-7ho had come to Chicago "Ti th this in mind. 

B: The demonstrators themselves. 

D: Yes. And the police over-reacted, Hhich was ,,,hat the demonstrators 

wanted--at least, the leaders of the demonstrators. But you know, 

a 11 around the convention, up and dmvn the streets, never any 

incident of any kind. I never was bothered or disturbed, never saw 

anything. 

B: Getting tmvard the end no:v. Can you make an evaluation of Lyndon Johnson 
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as man as President--his strengths and his \veaknesses? 

D: Yes, I think that he was a\olfully right on big things. He hurt himself 

by a preoccupation lJith small things--personal feuds. The Kennedys 

became an obsession ,-lith him. Orie time when Bobby had announced he 

was going to make a speech on Vietnam in two or three days, the

President spent most of the two or three days doing things that would 

try to take the edge off the speech. This type of thing. 

B:  Was there any justification for that attitude tmvard Robert Kennedy? 

D: There might have been as far as Johnson is concerned. I would imagine 

he was concerned about him, that he was upset about him. He didn't 

like him. I think that ,.;ras reciprocated. But certainly when you're 

President 0:: the United States, you have a lot more important things 

to do than in'rolve your important time with a petty struggle with 

so::::.eone that -:':0::' ::::onsider a threat or an enemy. 

B: Did y01.t eVer hea.:: Robert Kennedy on Lyndon Johnson? 

D: Xo, I never h;d. 

B: It's a re lati0~s::::p that future scholars are going to 't"ant to inquire 

into. Tragically of course Robert Kennedy r s death cuts of f a large 

source of ip-£~~~ion. 

D: There were a lot of people who had heard about his feeling about 

Lyndon Johnson.. They weren't very complimentary. But Lyndon Johnson 

doesn't give off much warmth, never has. I don't think he endears 

himself to people, even the people closest to him. There are a lot 

of people tha~ are close to him who are loy~l to him--not close 

to him, but have worked closely with him who do not feel close to 

hir.1. 

I talked to one man Hho had ,·lOx-ked \-lith him over many, many years 
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,.,hen I ~7as concerned about the national committee and the way it t.,as 

beinz allm.;ed to drift and to fall apart, and I asked this fellow, 

"Isn't there someone ~7ho's close to-him who can talk to him," 

He says, "A lot of us have known him a long time, but no one 

is close enough. And if you take the subject up with him, he'll 

just spend most of his time telling you why you're wrong and not 

listening." 

B: You also said earlier that he could be an accomplished story teller 

in private. No ,-larmth comes through out of this? 

D: No. It's usually stories that are used to make a point about somebody 

else's weakness. 

B: Someone else specific? You mean petty picking at other people? 

D: Yes. Even pe:)ple that might work closely ,.,ith him. 

B: C.a.n you give ~:::. exc..:.-;:ple of that kind of thing to clarify--? 

D: Even in a closec-: i~terview. I don't think I'd '-Tant to tell some of 

the stories =hat have been related. They're really not anything 

pornographic 0:: anything like that, but the language is farm yard. 

B: Have you yot:rse If ever been the subject of Nr. Johnson's anger? 

D: I ~70uld icag:'::!.8 3 J. I don't know. I know that I never ,.,Tas asked to 

participate :':1 ar!ything. I suppose he never forgot that I was the 

first gover::!.;)!:" to announce for Jack Kennedy. 

B: He Hould reDember that kind of thing? 

D: Oh sure, ~f course. 

B: I noticed that so far as I could tell you,' in spite of your baCkground, 

you have not served in the Johnson years on cOTL.missions, panels, 

comilli ttee s. 

D: He appointed me to one commission. 

B: Hhich one ~"as that, sir? 
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D: I was appointed on the U.S. Panel of Arbitrators for the Settlement 

of International Disputes--investment disputes. He appointed me 

in some very good cOTIl?any. Leon Jmvorski, Judge Thurmond Arnold, 

and a professor at the University of Chicago ~'7hose name I just don't 

recall._ It ",as very inactive. ~ve never had a dispute. It's one 

in which the arbitrators are not permitted to sit on disputes between 

their country and another country. Since the United States is a major 

source of investments in other countries, it lvas doubtful that there 

lvould be many occasions that we lvould sit in a dispute between 

Ethiopia and Italy or something like that. 

B: If this is not an impertinent question, do you feel perhaps that your 

service to the country and the party might have warranted some kind 

of more notice than you got under the Johnson years? 

D: I v70uld thirrk so. There were many commissions where I might have been 

he lpful. 

B: I ask because I krrow that in the Kennedy years you had been an 

adviser to the Conference of Mayors and things like that. 

D: I've been in many instances, but I never was that close to Lyndon 

Johnson or any of the people around him. The only person in the 

lfnite House that I had any contact \.7ith so to speak of was Harvin 

Watson. And I'd have to say that he was extremely efficient as far 

as I was concerned. If I called him, he'd call back; if I asked 

a question, I'd get an answer. 

B: In what connection would you see Mr. Watson--party matters? 

D: Party matters, largely. 

B: Incidentally, do you feel that the disarray of the Democratic National 

Conmittee might have made a significant difference in Humphrey's 
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campaign? 

D: There's no question. If that corrunittee had been organized and 

functioning, we would not have missed the =egistration drive required 

in 1968. The' fac t that many Democrats were not registered cost 

Hubert some key states. I think Ohio might very well be one. 

B: You mentioned earlier a kind of reluctance on the part of the people 

with money. Did that affect Humphrey's campaign too? 

D: Humphrey started out with all kinds of money--,.7ith lots of money. 

But after the convention, I suppose the sources of money kind of 

dried up when it looked like he didn't have a possible chance of 

winning. But his preconvention money was ample. Another time his 

source of money dried up l'7as when Bobby Kennedy was killed. A lot 

of the contributors were more anti-Kennedy than anything else--

anti-Bobby Kennedy. I think that this caused Humphrey's money to dry 

up. They felt for two reasons: first, Kennedy was no longer a 

threat; and secondly, they felt Humphrey would be an easy convention 

winner. 

B: Do you know or do you have any indication of whether or not 

Mr. Johnson's animus toward the Kennedys extends to Ted Kennedy, too? 

D: I have a feeling that it certainly isn't the all-consuming preoccupation, 

but people who have been close to Johnson--certainly I don't find many 

Ted Kennedy fans there. 

B: Presumably they're reflecting Hr. Johnson himself? 

D: I would think so. I would think that Johnson would have his own 

ideas on who eight be the Democratic nominee. 

B: Hould you care to make a guess? 

D: No, gosh, I have no idea at this time. 

B: It's a long way until the next election. 
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D: Although I think that if Ted Kennedy y]ants the nomination, there's 

no one going to be able to stop him. 

B: Actually, I interrupted you Hhen you Here in the middle of evaluating 

Lyndon Johnson. Have you more to add to that? 

D: I think that history will treat him more kindly than his contemporary 

critics. I think he has put an at.;rful lot .of legislation on the books. 

I think the administration of those programs has left a lot to be 

desired. 

B: Do you feel that that's Mr. Johnson's fault too? ... 
D: I think so, because he has tried to do everything himself. I felt 

that with all these new programs, if he had placed one strong man 

at his the \fuite House, authorized to talk for him and 

to see that those programs got moving, that the domestic side of his 

A~~inistratio~ ~~uld look a 16t better. 

B: Yet: mean a She.r=a.:l Adams type figure? 

D: I won r t use t~a::. D.a?e exactly. But I mean a strong right arm, a man 

who tvas knowlcd;eable in government and whom he had confidence in and 

could speak for him and could get to these people in the new programs 

and say, "He've got to move. II I think that HUD would have moved 

better. I thirt~;;; li::::E\-i might move be tter. I think the poverty program 

definitely D~~~t have moved better. It certainly needed a lot of 

attention. AID would have moved better. 

B: You suggested that as firmly as if you almost had an individual 

in mind for the position. 

D: No, I didn't have an individual in mind, but I felt a strong need 

for it because I've been in and out of Washington for a long time. 

I ~ent to school here. I've seen the federal government operation. 
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I have been in the federal governr:lent. I kno:.-l that it just doesn't 

move unless there's Some attention given to it. A lot of people get 

the idea that if they don't do anything, they \-lon't make mistakes> 

and consequently they won't be criticized. A day goes awfully, 

awfully fast, and then it's tomorrow, and then it's the next day, 

and nothing happens. This hurt Johnson tremendously. 

B: Is this an unwillingness to delegate a kind of personal vanity? 

D: I think so. Then I think that as administrator, he had had very little 

experience as an administrator. His field had been legislative, 

and so he had this reluctance to delegate. Then he had a tendency 

to second-guess. If somebody did do something and it was wrong or 

criticized by the papers, he'd be on the telephone. 

B: To that individual?

D: Tc that indivi:L~l. So the next time this fellmv was going to be 

more reluctant ~~ GO anything on his o~m. 

B: Did this appl; ~? to the highest level too? 

D: Oh sure, of course. Of course, Cabinet officers are nOH saying that 

they had disa;reed with Johnson on this or that, or the other thing, 

but this is sert of empty now. 

B: \vere you clc se to the Kennedy Cabinet officers vlho stayed the distance 

with Johnso;:t"? 

D: I .",asn't close to them. I knew them all. I kne,,,, Orville Freeman. He 

had been governor at the same time I '.Jas governor. I had knmm Stuart 

Udall over the years. Wirtz was on Wage Stabilization while I was in 

Price Stabilization. So I knew many of them. 

E: I was wonderi~g if you were close enough to them to know how well they 

got along \.;Tith Mr. Johnson. 
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D: No. I ,vould just be repeating rumors) and I just don't know from my 

own knmvledge. 

13: Sir. is there anything else you'd like to add to this kind of record? 

D: I can't think of anything. Maybe when the transcript comes, I might 

have some things. 

B: Okay. 
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GENERAL SERVICES ADNINISTRATION 
NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDS SERVICE 

Gift of Personal Statement 

By Michael V. DiSalle 

to the 

Lyndon Baines Johnson Lihrary 

In accordance with Sec. 507 of the Federal Property and Adminis-
~rati:~ ~ervices Act of 1949, as amend~d ~44~U.S.C. p9?) and regulations 
~ssueC. tnereunder (41 CFR 101-10), I ,/74,,/.0' f·£~' ,/dGIV ,hereinafter 
refer.;:-ed to as the donor, hereby give, donate, and' convey to the United 
States of America for eventual deposit in the proposed Lyndon Baines 
Johnson Library, and for administration therein by the authorities 
thereof, a tape and transcript of a personal statement approved by me 
and prepared for the purpose of deposit in the Lyndon Baines Johnson 
Library. The gift of this material is made subject to the following 
terms and conditions: 

1. Title to the material transferred hereunder, and all literary 
property rights, will pass to the United States as of the date of the 
delivery of this material into the physical custody of the Archivist 
of the United States. 

2. It is the donor's wish to make the material donated to the 
United States of America by terms of this instrument available for 
research as soon as it has been deposited in the Lyndon Baines Johnson 
Library. 

3. A reV~Slon of this stipulation governing access to the material 
for research may be entered into between the donor and the Archivist of 
the United States, or his designee, if it appears desirable. 

4. The material donated to the United States pursuant to the fore-
going shall be kept intact permanently in the Lyndon Baines Johnson 
Library. ) 

Signed //;{ J 'i.-Y_l /-i~ )tie.:_ 
I 

Date 

Date October 1, 1974 
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Preparation of "Gift of Personal Statement" 

A. If you do not wish to impose restrictions on the use of your tape and 
transcript and if YOIl do not feel the need to retain literary property 
rights upon the material, please sign the enclosed statement and return 
it to the Oral History Project. 

B. If you wish to restrict the use of your transcript for a period of time 
beyond the date of the opening of the Johnson Library, a new statement will 
be prepared (either by you or by us) deleting paragraph 2 and substituting 
the following, with one of the alternatives: 

It is the donor's wish to make the material donated to the United States 
of America by the terms of the instrument available for research in the 
Lyndon Baines Johnson Library. At the same time, it is his wish to 
~Jard against the possibility of its contents being used to embarrass, 
d~age, injure, or harass anyone. Therefore, in pursuance of this 
oojective, and in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 507 (f) (3) of 
the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949, as amended 
(44 U.S.C. 397) this material shall not, 

for a period of ----- years 

or 

during the donor's lifetime 

or 

for a period of ____ _ years or until the donor's 
prior death 

for a period of years or until -----years after the death of the donor, whichever occurs 
earlier 

or 

for a period of years or until -:------years after the death of the donor, whichever occurs 
later 

be available for examination by anyone except persons who have received 
Ely express written authorization to examine it. 

C. If YS''': wish to have the restriction imposed above apply to employees of the 
National Archives and Records Service engaged in performing normal archival 
work processes, the following sentence will be added to paragraph 2: 

This restriction shall apply to and include employees and officers of 
the General Services Administration (including the National Archives and 
Records Service and the Lyndon Baines Johnson Library) engaged in performing 
normal archival work processes. 
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D. If you do not wish to have the restriction imposed above apply to employees 
of the National Archives and Records Service, the following sentence will 
be added to paragraph 2: 

This restriction shall not apply to employees and officers of the General 
Services Administration (including the National Archives and Records 
Service and the Lyndon Baines Johnson Library) engaged in performing 
normal archival work processes. 

E. If a restriction that extends beyond your lifetime is to be imposed in 
paragraph 2, the following paragraph (appropriately numbered) will be 
completed and added to the end of the "Gift of Personal Statement": 

I hereby designate to have, after my 
death, the same authority with respect to authorizing access to the 
aforesaid material as I·have reserved to myself in paragraph 2 and 
paragraph 3 above. 

F. If you wish to retain the literary property rights to the material for a 
period of time, the phrase in paragraph I "and all literary property rights" 
will be deleted and either of the following paragraphs (appropriately 
numbered) added to the end of the statement: 

The donor retains to himself for a period of years all literary 
property rights in the material donated to the United States of America 
by the terms of the instrument. After the expiration of this ______ __ 
year period, the aforesaid literary property rights will pass to the 
United States of America. 

or 

The donor retains to himself during his lifetime all literary property 
rights in the material donated to the United States of America by the 
terms of this instrument. After the death of the donor, the aforesaid 
literary property rights will pass to the United States of America. 
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